Response to Questions

270-03-7127

General Questions:

1.  Q:  Does the Government expect resumes from all personnel (including the 7 on site at CSAT), or just those we deem as key personnel? 

A:  We would expect to receive resumes of Key personnel and those mentioned directly in the proposal.

2.  Q:  There is no specific task addressing the provision of technical assistance to either CSAT or the Grantee=s. Should it be inferred, that the absence of a specific task addressing technical assistance, that, (1) technical assistance is a part of Task 4, or (2) that direct technical assistance to CSAT and the grantee=s will be provided under another contract? 

A:  It should be assumed that Technical assistance and training is provided as part of this contract under the relevant tasks in the SOW.

3.  Q:  If technical assistance is to be provided under this contract, how many technical assistance assignments does CSAT anticipate on an annual basis? Secondly, under which task should the provision of technical assistance be addressed? 

A:  We would expect that TA could take place for as much as 80% of the grantees after they have received the training. TA can be delivered via phone or in person.  Thus assume approximately 600 TA activities per year. It should be conducted under Task Area 4.

4. Q:  Please provide annual volume estimates (across the life of this RFP): 

Q:  Number of TCE grantees  

A:  There are approximately 700 TCE grantees-assume 1000

Q:  Number of KA contracts/grants  

A: There are approximately 200 KAs assume 500 

Q:  Volume of TCE data reports expected  

A:   Web based reports assume 25 adhoc reports assume 100

Q:  Number of KA data reports expected  

A:  Assume Web based B10 adhoc---25 reports 

5. Q:  What is the status of the current data reporting mechanism for grantees (Is the system operational?)?  How many grantees are currently submitting data electronically through the Web, and how many have been trained? How many grantees are expected to be submitting data electronically by the start of contract? 

A:  The system is currently operational for both the KA and TCE grantees and contractors.  There are approximately 700 current TCE grantees and 80 KA grantees submitting data.  This number is expected to be constant at the start of program and expected to grow.  All have been trained.

6. Q:  What are the specifications for the existing data system?  Where is the system currently located?  Are the current systems operations staffs working on-site or remotely?  What tools and platforms are used to develop and operate the current system? 
A:  The system is currently located at the contractor=s location (Caliber).  The specifications are as follows: Key Technology Front-End: ColdFusion, HTML, JavaScript, Cascading Style Sheet; Back-end: Oracle9i; Web Graphics and Design:  Adobe Illustrator, Adobe PhotoShop, Macromedia Flash, Macromedia Dreamweaver and Macroland Macromedia Fireworks.
7. Q:  The solicitation mentions a three-week transition period from the incumbent on this project. Who is that incumbent and what portion of the work is to be transitioned? Is there more than one group involved in the transition, e.g., the website, data management of existing GPRA reporting? 

A:  Caliber is the incumbent and all of the work that is to be transitioned.  For training there were several contractors and all of their work is ending and will be included in this contract. The contract numbers are as follows:  Caliber, ANEDS II@ is 270-00-7078; NGIT, AKDA@, 270-98-7047; ACS/Birch & Davis, ATCE T/A@, 270-99-7068.

8. Q:  What is the role of other reporting systems to which grantees may be reporting such as TEDS or other elements of the DASIS system or NTOMS participating sites? 

A:  This is unclear at this time and as noted in Task area 8 is to be explored as part of this Contract.
9. Q:  Is there a plan to add the state block grant program sites to this system? Is there another parallel effort for these programs and what will be the interface between these programs and this system?

A:  There are no current plans to add block grant programs to this system. The WITS activity in the Division of State and Community Assistance will address PPG needs; however being aware and collaborating with this effort is required in this contract under Task 8.

10.
 Q:  Data is being collected via the website now according to the solicitation.  How does this effort differ: expanding compliance with data collection, expanding sites, and expanding data elements? 

A:  This effort continues this approach (Web site, data entry and reporting, training on tool and follow-up procedures) and expands the sites as new grants are awarded and potentially may expand elements being collected.

11.
Q:  It is our understanding that there are many “umbrella” efforts going on at SAMHSA and ONDCP regarding GPRA data elements and reporting. What is the relationship of this effort to the SAMHSA plans and is there any requirements or support derived from that effort that should be taken into account? 

A:  At this time this is a CSAT procurement and other efforts (CSAP and CMHS) need to be noted by the contractor and here too collaboration and cooperation with these efforts is expected.

12.
Q:  The RFP mentions that OMB clearance exists for patient services activities data. It also mentions the need to develop common data elements with other data collection efforts. Is the bidder to assume that there will be no change to the data collection tools or that changes will occur and OMB review is to be anticipated? 

A:  The core elements have OMB approval but will come up for renewal under this contract. In addition, should additional elements be required by CSAT that need OMB approval, it is expected that the contractor will assist with the preparation of OMB materials.

13.
Q:  The RFP requests that two full time staff members from the contractor organization be housed at CSAT for this project.  It is unclear what type or level staff CSAT is looking for, however.  Are these to be IT staff or analyst; that is, are they to maintain the data collection system, be a training resource or someone who will run data analyses? 

A:  The individuals to be housed at CSAT should possess the necessary qualifications to provide training to the staff on reading reports, understand targets and communicate changes to the contractor at CSAT=s request.  A person familiar with research methods, data, measurement and reporting is essential.

14.
Q:  What volume of records does CSAT expect the 1,000 discretionary grantees and 61 Performance Partnership grantees to submit to SAIS?  What is the breakdown between intake records and follow-up records?  What is the breakdown by contract year? 
A:  It is expected that record volume currently at 200,000 will increase during the life of this contract.

15.
 Q:  We understand that CSAT has a variety of discretionary programs such as the HIV outreach and cost studies.  We felt that the RFP emphasized substance abuse treatment facilities.  Are we correct if we assume that the proposed GPRA work deals only with grantees that provide treatment to substance abuse clients? 

A:  No, outreach is a critical component of the treatment continuum.

10. We would find it useful in preparing our proposal to have some more information about the data that CSAT expects SAIS to collect or receive. 

A:  You can download all the forms from the website these are the core GPRA elements including codebooks.  The address is www.csat-gpra.org.

17.  Q:  If each discretionary grantee submits one record of client outcome measures per admission, and follow-ups on 80% at 6 months and 12 months (3 months only for juveniles), that would be 2.6 records per adult admission, 1.8 records per juvenile admission. Is this CSAT=s expectation? 
A:  Yes

11.  Q:  Are the discretionary grantees expected to submit client records on a flow or a batch basis?  If not on a flow basis, how often are records to be submitted?  Weekly, monthly, quarterly, annually? 

A:  They are expected to enter data 7 days after the completion of the hard copy of the form.  Thus in a flow basis, daily submission is expected from the portfolio but not necessarily from every grantee.
12. Q:  May grantees submit client records on paper or must they all be submitted electronically through the Web site?  Are clients permitted to submit batched electronic records on tape or disk?  If the method of submission is at the option of the grantee, what has been the distribution of records by submission method so far? 

A:  Grantees may collect the data on paper but must submit the data via the Website.  See response to Question 19.  There is only one submission method permitted and that is the Website.

13.  Q:  Do the Performance Partnership grantees submit the same client data as the discretionary grantees? 

A:  No, this system only applies to discretionary grantees at the present. This could change in the future but it is expected that would not occur in the life of this contract.
14. Q:  How will Performance Partnership grantees be expected to submit client records?

A:  They currently do not submit records and will most likely not in the life of this project.
15. Q:  Are Performance Partnership grantees required to do the same 6 and 12-month follow-up of adults and 3-month follow-up of juveniles as discretionary grantees? 
A:  They are not included in this application, however currently they will as part of the PPG process collect admission, discharge.

16. Q:  Does a Table of Contents count towards the 100-page limit on the technical proposal? 

A:  Yes.

17.  Q:  The SOW references need to expand existing data set.  Are there currently any processes/committees/recommendations under way to expand the current data set?

A:  No, it is expected that this contract would pull together advisory groups to address issues like this.

25. Q:  Are there any recommendations from the PART review of Programs of Regional and National Significance, the budget authority under which most CSAT discretionary programs are funded, that would suggest the kinds of measures OMB is looking for? Was there any assessment of the current core data set beyond the fact that it is insufficient?
A:  The GPRA measures used for the discretionary programs feed into PART.

26. Q:  Does the current data collection/GPRA website support integration of customized modules and core data set? Are there any examples of these modules currently being developed?

A:  There are modules that are anticipated such as those collected by the program area grantees such as AOld Cluster Groups@ as well as the ATTCs evaluation data.

27.  Q:  The SOW mentions assessment of CSAT Program Cost Effectiveness and Offset as analytical studies that will help portfolio management and response to GPRA and other Federal accountability initiatives.  Any examples of how this is currently being done through cross program assessment? 
A:  This is not currently being done and it is anticipated that this would be a function of this contract with regards to the advisory group work.

28. Q:  It appears that the contract will limit labor remuneration to a maximum of $171,900 per person per year.  Is this correct and what does the price include and/or exclude?

A:  That is correct.  See Section H B Special Contract Requirements, page 20 of the solicitation for details. 
29. Q:  Are all consultant fees limited to a $400 per day maximum?  It appears that the contract will disallow any employee from working more than a standard 40-hour week.  Is this correct?

A:  The Contracting Officer must authorize any consultant fees exceeding $400 per day, in writing.  Contractors will be reimbursed for over employees working over 40 hours pursuant to regulations under the FAR.
30. Q:  It appears that the contract will disallow any direct costs for purchase of personal computers, printers, and other office equipment, but requires a co-located office in Rockville, Maryland.  Is this correct? 

A:  The Contracting Officer must authorize the purchase of personal computers, printers and other office equipment, in writing.  Regarding the contract employees on-site, the Government will supply them with computers and workspace outside of the contract costs.
31. Q:  The RFP states that the proposal and every contract invoice must disclose the salary of every employee.  Is this correct? 
A:  Under Direct Costs, sub-element Direct Labor consists of salaries and wages for direct performance of the contract.
32. Q:  What is the configuration of the existing hardware/software system?  Such as, number of servers, number of work stations, number of users, storage capacity in bytes, operating system, other cots and non-cots software, other hardware, existing software licenses, etc?

A:  See previous answers above on approximate number of users and number of records. 
33. Q:  Will the government post an intended bidders list?
A:  The bidders list is attached.
34. Q:  Task 1, point 2:  This specifies that the successful bidder will receive all government materials from previous contractor(s).  An inventory of the number and types of data files currently being maintained by GPRA contractor(s) would be helpful.  Does the government expect the successful bidder to receipt any computer hardware?  If so, would the successful bidder be required to pay the current contractor(s) for this hardware? 

A:  Hardware will not be delivered as none was purchased under the current contract.  An inventory of materials will be provided post award.

35. Q:  Task 1. Transition, point 4:  This specifies if the previous contractor did not plan for a transition task, the new contractor shall subcontract with the previous contractor for up to one month.  For budgeting purposes please provide guidance on the amount of this subcontract (or subcontracts).

A:  The main contractor Caliber did plan for this in the current contract.  However, for the other contractor, transition dollars will need to be allocated.  Since we do not know the amount of transition help a contractor will need we cannot provide a specific amount.  
36. Q:  Task 3:  There is a requirement for consultants to be available for a number of tasks and to provide such assistance either by telephone, electronically, through written reports, or on-site. 
A:  This question unclear.Task 3, Subtask 3.2:  
37. Q:  Does CSAT anticipate that the on-site support staff will work full-time at the CSAT site?

A:  Yes

38. Q:  Task 4, Item 3. Presentations:  There is a reference to making presentations and one of the subjects referenced is quarterly reports.  However, there is no other reference to quarterly reports in the RFP.  Is it CSAT's intent that the SAIS contractor will be responsible for the collections and review of all grantee's quarterly reports? 

A:  This meant that information from quarterly reports could be used in the presentations.  Review of quarterly reports is a function in another contract.
39. Q:  Subtask 3.2 On-Site Staff:  On-site Staff are expected to provide expert knowledge on “system development and implementation” among other things.  How does this activity differ from activities the regular Contractor Staff are expected to provide?
A:  The staff will be housed at CSAT and available during regular business hours to the staff at CSAT to assist with issues that arise as a function of performance monitoring.
40. Q:  Task 4, subtask 4.1, first paragraph:  Please clarify the number of trainers required to conduct the training of grantees.  Will 4 trainers be required for each of the 2 regional grantee trainings per month?  How many individual attendees should we expect from each of the 1000 grantees?

A:  New grantees are required to be trained and this can be up to 3 individuals from one site that attend a training on topics including GPRA administation, GPRA Follow-up, GPRA Website Data entry.  These trainings are for an individual actually involved in these activities, not the Project director.  Thus the student trainer rations should be 25 to 1.  Re-training or training new staff of continuing projects is on a space available basis. However it is expected that trainings would be offered on an ongoing scheduled basis.
41. Q:  Task 4, subtask 4.1, third paragraph, fourth bullet (Page 13 of Attachment 1, Section C) refers to Task 11, subtask 11.2 for clarification of the requirement to develop a User Guide. The referenced paragraph concerns “Special Reports” submitted through the GPO and apparently contains nothing of import for a User Guide. Is this an incorrect reference? If so, what should the reference be? If the reference is correct, please explain.
A:  The reference should be Task 12 Subtask 12.2.
42. Q:  Task 4, Reporting Requirement:  Are both user and CSAT staff training plans and materials due 30 days EDOC, or just the User training documents?

A:  Both are due.
43. Q:  Task 4:  The RFP mentions that 150 CSAT staff will be trained in four sessions.  Is the bidder to assume 35-40 staff per session?

A:  Yes.

44. Q:  Task 4, Number 1: The first paragraph ends with a reference to General Requirements in A.6, which states, “The Contractor shall arrange and pay for modes of transportation, lodging, per diem and ground transportation for meeting participants”.  Does this mean the contractor should budget for these expenses for the grantees attending the meetings?  The paragraph also mentions other contractor staff who may receive training.  Should the budget include travel, etc., for other contractor staff?  If so, how many other contractor staff should be used for budget estimation?

A:  Trainings and all costs for grantees should be budgeted into this contract.  Contractor training should only include costs of providing a location for the training if CSAT or the SAIS contractor does not have space at their office location.  Contractors would be expected to charge their own contracts for local travel.
45. Q:  Task 4, subtask 1 (Training):  The SOW specifies that “It is expected that one-day grantee training will take place in 2 regional locations a month for up to 20 grantee attendees and will be conducted by 4 trainers.”  It was not clear if 4 trainers will conduct each training session or if a pool of 4 trainers would be used to conduct all the sessions.  Please clarify.

A.: A pool of trainers would be used.

46. Q:  Task 5, Subtask 5.1, ADP Proposed Resources: This paragraph is included under Task 5, but is worded as if it is a general requirement.  Is the intent to apply the requirements of this paragraph to the entire statement of work, or just to Task 5?  

A:  It applies to the entire statement of work.  
47. Q:  Task 5, Subtask 5.1, ADP/IT Plan:  In year 1, does this plan concern only the current system, or the replacement system? If the replacement system, are there differences between the ADP plan and the documents created by Tasks 8, 9, 10 and 11?  

A:  The ADP and security plan must cover both the current system as well as any systemic changes that may be adopted.  It is expected that this ADP plan would cover or contain information created by Tasks 8-11.
48. Q:  Task 5, Subtask 5.1, Reporting Requirement:  This requirement states that “Implementation of the plan shall take place after final GPO approval.” Does this mean the contractor is required to implement the plan, or is this simply an indication of timing of implementation by CSAT?

 A:  The Recommendation and changes must be presented to CSAT and approved. Once approved it is expected that the contractor would carry them out.  
49. Q:  Task 6:  This Task is about maintenance and operation of the existing system, but the only work specified is a Pilot Test and a Quality Control Plan.  Does CSAT wish the contractor to assume any responsibility for ongoing operation and maintenance of the existing system? If so, please identify the contractor=s responsibilities, in terms of:  Physical hosting of COTS, applications and databases, Database Administration Web Site Management (Web Master) services, Bug fixes and other small scale maintenance programming.

A:  Yes, the contractor is responsible for ongoing operation and maintenance of the existing system and all items listed above are to be included.  
50. Q:  Task 6, subtask 6.1 Pilot Test:  This task suggests testing of the current system is incomplete. Please describe what testing will be completed prior to EDOC.  

A:  The intent of this Task is to have another examination of this system which would and should necessitate recommendation for upgrades, changes etc. as outlined in other Tasks in the SOW.  Thus the system has been tested and this is a re-examination.
51. Q:  Task 9, SAIS Master Plan:  Can you provide clarity on exactly what Government is expecting in response to this task?  We are assuming that you want our ideas and outlines for the master plan B not the plan itself.  
A:  The SAIS Master Plan is to be a full-blown plan delivered 7 months after EDOC-see Deliverables list.  A draft design is due 5 months after EDOC. 
52. Q.  How are the “training” and “management and staffing” sections to be written differently than the “training” task and “management plan” of the proposal?

 A:  The training section should discuss trainings for grantees and the management and staffing sections should include how the offeror would implement the task relative to the federal staff.
53. Q:  Task 9, item 8, Management and Staffing:  The RFP lists a requirement to include consultants, if any, along with the teams of experts to be utilized in completing assignments.

A:  Yes, this is correct.
54. Q:  Task 9 Subsection 1: Data Infrastructure:  The last two lines of this paragraph indicates that a “full review” shall be included as an attachment.  A summary of that review should be included in the master plan description."  What do they mean be a “full review”?

A:  A full review of the current system, both back end and front end, should be covered such that the contractor would be able to make recommended changes to the system and detail the system in the Master Plan.

55. Q:  Task 10, subtask 10.4:  This Task specifies that the contractor shall run the (existing) system during Year 1. The replacement system is to be deployed near the end of Year 1. This deployment task is not repeated in out years, so there is no provision in the SOW for running the system after the end of Year 1. Please identify the contractor’s responsibilities regarding operation and maintenance of the new system in years two and later, in terms of: Physical hosting of COTS, applications and databases, Database Administration Web Site Management (Web Master) services, Bug fixes and other small scale maintenance programming.

A:  The offeror is to run, maintain and improve all aspects of the system including helpdesk and modification throughout the life of the contract.
56. Q:  Task 11:  This Task requires the development of standard reports, including cross program, GPRA, Block Grant, etc. analyses.  What standard reports are currently being generated?  (It would be helpful to bidders to have access to these reports.)

A:  This information is available in the reading room at CSAT contactor office in hard copy.  
57. Q:  Task 11:  This Task requires special reports, including rapid turn-around reports as well as customized reports for grantees.  Please provide guidance on the number and scope of these reports, similar to the information provided for Subtask 12.1, to assist in budget preparation.

A:  At times there are congressional inquiries about different types of programs being funded such as women and women and children grantees.  Information might include a count of these programs, location, demographics of clients served, budgets and GPRA outcomes.  
58. Q:  Task 12, subtask 12.1, second paragraph:  This paragraph says “The Contractor shall prepare and submit for the GPO approval, brief study overview (2-3 pages) papers of up to 5 suggested policy relevant topics...” but gives no time frame.  Is this for the first year or every year, including the option years, if options are exercised?  Same subtask, page 28, NOTE TO OFFERORS states “These will require approximately 250 hours to complete”.  Is the hour estimate for each of the three publications or for all three together?  

A:  This task would be though out the life of the contract.  They would be short papers and this an appropriate time frame might be 7-10 business days.  The hour estimate is for all three together.  
59. Q:  Task 12, subtask 12.1, third paragraph:  “The KAP contractor may be used to assist in the clearance process.”  Does KAP refer to knowledge Application (KA) contractor?  Should its assistance be considered in this contract budgeting?

A:  Yes, KAP refers to Knowledge Application, and no, just coordinating and collaborating.
60. Q:  Task 13:  The specifications refer to “clearance packages” (plural).  On page 30, the specifications indicate a clearance package (one).  What is CSAT's intention? 

A:  There would be potentially multiple packages from 3-9.
61. Q:  Task 14:  The RFP references information on the operation of technical assistance and logistical support to maintain the State Treatment Needs Assessment Program. 

A:  This question is unclear but the program is being terminated by CSAT.

62. Q:  Page 1.  Paragraph 4 states the SAIS will provide funding to cover GPRA activities for all CSAT discretionary programs, specifically for conducting accountability and performance assessments of these programs.  Will CSAT provide separate funding to programs to conduct these assessments?  If yes, does CSAT plan to allocate the funds outside the SAIS contract? 

A:  All assessments are conducted using the GPRA data and thus are funded out of this contract.  Grantees do, however, have and can use up to 20% of their budgets for local evaluation.
63. Q:  In the introduction to the CSAT SAIS RFP, there is a statement indicating that this contract will provide support for the delivery of training and technical assistance.  
A:  Yes, the TA and Training is to be on the tool, on follow-up techniques, on the Web-data entry system and is to be for both the grantees as well as CSAT staff.
64. Q:  Item 5 on page 7 of the SOW specifies, “Grantees may ... provide additional programmatic information in modules.”  Is the SAIS contractor expected to prepare for and accommodate over 1,000 different and unique sets or combinations of data items?  Does CSAT have any information on how many grantees can be expected to take advantage of this proviso? 

A:  It is expected that there will be modules and by GFA approximately 10-15 GFA will take advantage of this.  It is expected to be reduced, in the future, to 4 standing GFAs but the number of grantees is not known at this time.  
65. Q:  Page 8, Item 4:  How should offerors budget this activity?  Does CSAT know whether the current contractor has budgeted for its participation in this activity?  

A:  It is assumed that this refers to the Transition.  The current contract has budgeted this activity for 30 days worth of work.  If the new contractor believes they would want to keep the contractor connection longer they should assume $75,000.  
66. Q:  In Section B, page 4, it states that the award fee will be reviewed and paid annually.  This is an unusually long time for the government to withhold a fee to which a contractor may be entitled.  Moreover, this may impose hardships on small organizations.  Most other Federal agencies review performance or award fee considerations, at a minimum of, twice a year.  Please consider conducting these reviews and making payments of award fee every six months after award. 

A:   This will be conducted annually.
67. Q:  Section B.1 of the RFP states, “The purpose of this contract is to consolidate GPRA reporting and related activities for CSAT=s entire discretionary program under one umbrella; these are currently spread across multiple CSAT Technical Assistance and GPRA contracts.”  What contracts other than NEDS II are currently involved in these types of GPRA activities for CSAT?  Who is the incumbent on these contracts?

 A:  Currently only the NEDS II contract is involved in the Web/data entry and reporting function. 
68. Q:  In Section C, on page 3, under item Number 8, the statement reads that SAIS will “track, monitor,    analyze, and report on data from other relevant studies and surveys.”  Will these studies and surveys either (1) be in the public domain [e.g., public use data files available through SAMHDA or similar], or (2) provided by CSAT and/or the GPO to the successful bidder? 
A:  These surveys and studies may potentially be both public domain data as well as data provided by CSAT to the new contractor.

69. Q:  On page 12 of Section C, reference is made to the Consultant Exchange Data Base (CEDB).  Was this developed under contract, and if so, who developed the CEDB?  Who currently maintains the CEDB?  Can we have access to this system during the development of our proposal? 
A:  The CEDB is a system developed under another CSAT contract.  The CEDB contractor will train the new contractor after award has been made.  Access to the system at this time is not necessary.

70. Q:  On page 13 of Section C, under “Training”, for the two (2) regional trainings per month, is it CSAT’s intent that grantees’ local travel or logistical costs related to these trainings be paid from their individual grants, as is typically the case for such trainings?  
A:  No, this travel will be supported from this contract.

71. Q:  On page 14 of Section C, under “Presentations”, may we assume that other than the Contractor=s costs of travel, preparation, and presentations, that grantees’ costs related to these presentations will be paid from their individual grants?  
A:  Yes.

72. Q:  Page 15 of Statement of Work: “ADP Proposed Resources” section states that in addition to the ADP/FIP Costs Sheet, a budget and narrative for each of the ADP resources must be submitted in the proposal.  Are we to assume that “proposal” is referring to the business proposal, and not the technical proposal? 
A:  Yes.

73. Q:  In Section C, on page 18, under Task 6, Pilot Testing, is it correct to assume that “individual program level” refers to GFAs and not individual grantees? 
A:  Yes.  

74. Q:  Can CSAT provide any references to literature or other documents that illustrate the data categorization schemes referred to in item 3c., on page 23 of the SOW?  
A:  While the model is correct, the examples are prevention examples and not treatment examples.  See Demystifying evaluation from the National Clearinghouse on Drug and Alcohol Information (NCADI). 
75. Q:  On page 29 of Section C, under “Develop an OMB Clearance Package”, for budgeting purposes, does the government anticipate that this contractor will be responsible for obtaining OMB clearance of the PPG data collection instruments?  
A:  No.

76. Q:  Under General Requirements in the Statement of Work, point number 6 (page 30), “Ythe Contractor shall arrange and pay for mode of transportation, lodging as needed, per diem and ground transportation for meeting participants.”  Are we correct in assuming that the term “meeting” does not include the training activities detailed in Task 4 (i.e., grantees will responsible for their own transportation, lodging, and per diem costs to attend these trainings).  
A:  All aspects of GPRA training for grantees are to be supported out of this contract.  Attendance at the orientation grantee meetings is supported by grantees funds.  

77. Q:  Page 55 of 75 in RFP: Do the 28 FTEs stated include the 7 at CSAT 
A:  Yes.

78. Q:  Page 56 of 75 in RFP states: any appendix to the proposal should not exceed 100 pages in length.  Does this mean that we can have 100 pages of the technical proposal and an additional 100 pages of attachments? 
A:  Any Appendix to the Technical Proposal shall not exceed 100 pages in length.  

79. Q:  Page 65 of 75 in RFP, “Methods” B Is the Government expecting a separate section within the proposal that solely addresses the methodology used for each task, or is it permissible to incorporate the methods used within our technical approach (not necessarily addressing distinct methods for each task)? 
A:  The offeror should present a general framework and discuss each task or logical groupings of tasks    

      regarding methodology.

    80. Q:  In Attachment II, there are several places where “Fewer than 10 complaints during each contract year including GPO comments” is the measure of performance (see, for example, Tasks 6 and 8).  This appears to apply a double penalty for every “complaint” and does not give differential weight to significant concerns verses frivolous complaints or situations over which the contractor has no control.   Moreover, GPO comments and feedback should be the normal and productive exchange between a contractor and client and not an indicator of concern.  Would CSAT consider reviewing these measures and finalizing them at time of award?
       A:  No, these are the performance measures/standards.

    81. Q:  Section F.2.a. suggests that satisfactory performance occurs upon delivery and acceptance by the CO or his/her representative.  Section H.2.b. suggests that an additional quality evaluation will be used.  Please reconcile these two discussions.  
A:  Section F.2 refers to deliverables.  Section H.2 refers to award fee determinations.

    82.Q:  Are we correct in assuming that the yearly schedule of activities in Section F.2, where some activities only occur in a single year, takes precedence over the statement on page 30 of the Statement of Work that indicates tasks in the option years are the same as Year 1?
     A:  See Order of Precedence Clause.  

     83. Q:  In Section H.2.b. the adjective rating, “Satisfactory Plus” is used but not defined.  Please define. 
      A:  See page 19 of 75 of the solicitation for the “Satisfactory Plus” description.  This is a subjective       qualitative measure determined by the Award Fee Board.

      84.  Q:  In the tasks involving the study overviews, the RFP states that the contractor is to       prepare five study overviews and 2-3, 30-page reports. Are there to be five study overviews in the first year only and 2-3 publishable reports for each 2-3 year period?  
      A:  It is expected that 5 overviews and 2-3 reports would be done in the life of the contract.

